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The Lewis-Mills House is a finely detailed Greek Revival structure
situated on a corner lot at North Hill and T1nsley Streets along the
northernmost boundary of the original town plan of Griffin. It is a starkly
geometric, two-story, hipped roof building fronted by a monumentally scaled
portico. Four colessal square-profile Doric columns support a simply molded
‘entablature under a pediment whose gable roof is perpendicular to the facade,
The walls are brick stuccoed over and scored on. the two street facades. Low
triangular pediments on simply molded vertical panels frame the tall windows
of each story. Original six-over-six light windows remain in the second
floor while first-story panes have been replaced by larger units, probably
done during a remodeling in the nineteen-twenties. The molded detailing
elaborates all windows of the front and two side faces of the building,
although the pattern of the openings is varied on the north facade. Here,
instead of four windows evenly spaced, a pair of windows in both rear rooms
reflects the special window treatment of the original dining room in the
northeast corner. At the back of this face a two-story wing, carried out
very much in the spirit of the .original section although with arched window
openings, is a later addition. The entrance doorway is framed by rectangu-
lar fan and side lights separated by fluted strips, and enclosed within a
low triangular lintel and pilaster strips. This treatment is echoed in
the doorway to a hanging balcony above. An additional refinement in the
exterior detailing, which also appears in windows inside the house, is the
angled recess in which the door opening is placed. Similar framing and side
lights, with the angled recess omitted, appear in the rear doorways at both
levels. Here a two-story porch extends across the rear facade.

The four-room, wide; central -hall plan is the typical Greek Revival
plan common to piedmont Georgia in the 1840's and 50's. A straight-run
stairway returned to the upstairs hall is located at the rear of the hall.
Wide arched openings, now filled in, lead into both front rooms. Indenta-
tions in the plaster indicate the former location of moldings framing these
arches.

The fireplaces of the interior chimneys are still framed by the origi-
nal, low,rectangularly proportioned pilaster and entablature units. Down-
stairs, the entablature panel is given special emphasis by an additional
flat, but curved wooden panel. Windows upstairs and in the original dining
room downstairs are recessed on an angle in a similar manner to the treat-
ment of the entrance doorway. Most windows and doors carry earred and
molded framing.

Although this once fine house is deteriorated and being used for
several apartments, most of the original detailing, both inside and out,
remains. The basic structure of the building appears sound and very few
alterations in the original plan have been made to accommodate the apart-
ments.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Lewis-Mills House is an exceptionally fine example in this area
of the temple front Greek Revival town house. Elements of both its
interior detailing and exterior form are reminiscent of work elsewhere in
the state that is known to be by architect Charles B. Cluskey. For most
of its history this building, which dates from the 1850's, was occupied
by members and relatives of a prominent Griffin family, the Mills. It
has long been known simply as the Mills House.

The house was built, however, for the Lewis family, originally from
Massachusetts, during the decade before the Civil War. Mrs. Emily W. Lewis)
a widow, was living in the house during the war with her granddaughter,
Lavonia Hammond. Lavonia's reminiscences of later years included a des-
cription of the supper served by her grandmother to Yankee soldiers in
the big dining room. She also remembered the temporary hospital for Con-
federate soldiers which her grandmother with several other women set up in
her home. Robert Toombs, Alexander Stephens and Benjamin Hill, all noted
Georgians and friends of her father, William W. Hammond, she reports, were
entertained there. After the war, William W. Hammond, whose wife, Anna
Blount, died when Lavonia was only six years old, continued to live in the
house with Mrs. Lewis and his five children. Hammond was apparently a son
of Mrs. Lewis by an earlier marriage. It is rumored that Mrs. Lewis, a
very wealthy woman before the war, was in financial difficulty afterward.
The style of living which her granddaughter remembers does not indicate
this, but the deed records do suggest some problems. In 1862, Obediah
Gibson, in return for the payment of $7500 for two promissory notes given
in 1860, deeded to William W. Hammond the property 'nmow occupied by said
William W. Hammond and Emily W. Lewis.'" Lavonia Hammond's marriage in
1878 to John B. Mills was only one of many that were solemnized in the
family home. ILater, in 1901, when Mrs. Lewis died, John B. Mills purchased
the home from his wife's brothers and sisters. When Lavonia Hammond Mills
died in 1936 the house passed out of the Mills family. Owned by a suc-
cession of people and later rented for apartments, the house, nevertheless,
continued to be associated with the Mills family name.

The Mills family originally came to Griffin from Savannah during the
Reconstruction period. . The Mills brothers, Thomas R., Charles and James,
had been large shippers of cotton from Savannah to Liverpool. They were
also large stockholders in the Marine Bank of Savannah, who protected the
assets of this bank in London during the Civil War. The brothers thus
emerged from the war in a better financial position than many Southern
businessmen. In 1875 Thomas R. Mills retired and built a summer home,
Brookfield, outside of Griffin. Thomas brought with him one of his young-

est sons, John Blakely, who married Lavonia Hammond in 1878 and subsequently
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8. Significance

moved into the Lewis mansion. John and Lavonia had no children, but John's
younger brother James McIntosh had four. The youngest of these was named
John Blakely and his desceéndants still live in Griffin.

The house which was huilt by the family of Lavonia HammondMills has been
an integral part of the history of Griffin from its earliest period of growth.
In addition, it is a fine example of the architecture of its era. The stark
geometry of its exterior form, as well as such interior details as the carved
doorway moldings, syggest the influence, if not the hand of Charles B. Cluskey.
This Georgia architect, who lived and worked in Savannah in the mid-nineteenth
century, also designed important buildings in Augusta and Milledgeville.

Since Griffin families had connections in both Savannah and Milledgeville, and
Cluskey was in Georgia during the period when the house was built, it is
tempting to speculate on the possibility of his influence. The Mills House,
though not as large, bears some resemblance in its overall form to the Gover-
nor's Mansion in Milledgeville. Even though it has been neglected in recent
years, this structure conveys a forceful and monumental appearance on its
generous lot at the cormer of East Tinsley and North Hill Streets.

GPO 921.724
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